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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The All Saints' complex occupies the north side of East Juneau Avenue 
from North Marshall to North Cass Street on Milwaukee's near east side. The 
set consists of three buildings, all Gothic-inspired designs having walls of 
cream-colored local brick that has weathered to various shades of warm gray. 
From east to west (and in chronological order) the buildings are:

1. All Saints' Episcopal Cathedral, 828 East Juneau Avenue. De­ 
signed by Edward Townsend Mix of Milwaukee and erected in 1868-69, this 
attractive Gothic Revival edifice, with single lofty spire, served originally 
as Olivet Congregational Church. It was purchased by the Episcopalians and 
rededicated as All Saints' Cathedral in 1873. At that time the interior 
underwent minor remodelling. Further alterations were carried out in the 
1890s, when the wood-panelled ceilings of nave, aisles, and vestibules were 
installed; in 1900, when chancel screens were set in place; in 1908, when the 
chancel was enlarged by additional construction to the north; and in the years </» 
immediately following the First World War, when the nave arcade was simpli- m 
fied and present altar and chancel triptych installed. Most of the stained 
glass appears to date from the late 19th and early 20th centuries. Aside 
from extension of the chancel, the exterior has not been altered in any 
significant way.

2. Guild Hall-Cathedral Institute, 814-818 East Juneau Avenue. This 
two story, ivy-covered building is set back from Juneau Avenue and adjoins 
the northwest corner of the cathedral. It was erected in 1891 in accordance 
with plans provided by W. D. Kimball, a Milwaukee architect, and now serves 
as the cathedral office building. Exterior and interior have undergone only o 
minor alterations over the years.

3. Bishop's House, 804 East Juneau Avenue. Located on the northeast 
corner of Juneau and Cass Street, this is a sedate two and one-half story 
brick building with wood, stone, and concrete trim. It was planned by the 
local architectural firm of Charles Kirchoff and Thomas Leslie Rose and built 
in 1902-03. It now houses the offices of the Episcopal Diocese of Milwaukee 
and like the former Guild Hall-Cathedral Institute, survives in close to ori­ 
ginal form inside and out.

The buildings frame a spacious, tree-shaded lawn bounded by shrubs 
and other plantings. Along the west wall of the cathedral is a flower 
garden created in the 1960s by the Reverend James Ethan Alien and since his 
death named in his honor.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The All Saints f complex is an harmonious ensemble of three stylisti­ 
cally related buildings in a pleasantly landscaped setting. Two of the 
buildings were designed by well-known local architects—the Cathedral by 
Edward Townsend Mix, the most prominent Milwaukee architect of his day, and 
the Bishop's House by the firm of Charles Kirchoff and Thomas Leslie Rose. 
The Cathedral, which has been documented for the Historic American Buildings 
Survey, is one of the older churches still in use in Milwaukee and on the 
exterior looks much as it did when it was completed 105 years ago. The two 
later buildings have undergone no important alterations. In recognition of 
its architectural and historical significance to the community, the complex 
was designated as a Milwaukee Landmark in 1974.

All Saints' Cathedral is significant as being perhaps the first 
Episcopal Cathedral in the United States. Documentation of the fact is 
not hard and fast, however, and the Episcopal Cathedral at Albany, New 
York is a disputed claimant to first place. It may be safely said that 
All Saints* in Milwaukee is one of the first two Episcopal Cathedrals 
in the country, according to information from the Episcopal Diocese of 
Milwaukee.
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The HABS data-report incorporates a lengthy bibliography. Publications post­ 
dating this study include:
"All Saints 1 Cathedral, Milwaukee, 1873-1973," Milwaukee, 1973 (mimeographed)
Wietczykowski, Mary Ellen, "1870 in 1970: The Century-old Buildings of Down­ 

town Milwaukee," Wisconsin Academy Review, XVII, Winter, 1970-71, 1-8, 1^
Wietczykowski, Mary Ellen, "Three Episcopal Churches in Milwaukee ," Historical

Messenger of the Milwaukee County Historical Society,
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